

EPR policy instruments for E-Waste in Udaipur smart city.

Mr.Ashok Prajapat

Mewar university, Chittorgarh Rajasthan

Abstract: The rapid advancement of technology and the rising consumption of electronic goods have significantly increased the generation of electronic waste (e-waste) across India. Udaipur, as an emerging smart city, faces growing challenges in managing e-waste in a sustainable and environmentally responsible manner. This research paper investigates the implementation and effectiveness of the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) policy in the context of e-waste management in Udaipur. The study outlines the legislative frameworks governing e-waste in India, including the E-waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 2011, and its amendments in 2016, which mandate producers to meet e-waste collection targets and implement deposit-refund systems. EPR is a globally recognized approach where producers are made responsible for the end-of-life management of electronic products. In India, however, e-waste management is still dominated by informal sectors, limiting the success of EPR. This study emphasizes the need for better enforcement mechanisms, active stakeholder involvement, and awareness campaigns to integrate informal sectors into formal recycling systems. The paper also proposes city-specific guidelines tailored to Udaipur, aiming to improve collection, recycling, and reduction practices through registered e-waste collectors, reuse, repair, and green computing strategies. Comparative analysis with international policies such as the WEEE directives highlights innovative practices and tools. If implemented effectively, EPR policies can transform Udaipur into a model green smart city with sustainable and efficient e-waste management practices.

I. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR)

Before they can sell new equipment, the producers must take back old equipment for proper disposal. The cost of such “end-of-life” processing must be a part of the sale price, not listed as a separate fee. This gives manufacturers an economic incentive to devise the most efficient methods of coping with the problems of old equipment. Implementation of such measures would require the employment of large number of people, and could potentially mean the expansion of a new economic sector in developing countries. Extended producer responsibility (EPR) where the manufacturer's responsibility for its ICT equipment extends throughout the various stages of that equipment's life cycle with internalizing the cost of managing the equipment at end of life. Extended producer responsibility (EPR) is a policy framework in which the responsibility of the end-of-life management of consumer products is assigned to producers.

1.2 What is e-waste?

Electronic waste, also known as e-waste, includes all types of old, non-functional and unused electronic and electrical equipment. This includes all large and small equipment, cables, wires and any consumer electronic and electrical equipment operated by electricity or battery such as mobile, TV, fridge etc. Unscientific disposal/processing of such equipment can be harmful to the environment and human health. Therefore, contribute to environmental protection by giving e-waste to an authorized agency/institution and disposing it using environmentally friendly methods. EPR incentivizes eco-design and facilitates the efficient recovery of valuable materials, contributing to a circular economy for electronics (Cyclos et al., 2018). The Asian continent presents an exceptional case, with its rapidly growing E-waste, recognizing this as one of the several regional directives, the national regulations have emerged across the continent.

II. E-WASTE SCENARIO

2.1 Global E-waste production scenario-

As the world is technologically everchanging, technology itself has become a very integral part of Human lives. Wherever there is consumption, there is waste and with increased consumption of technology, there has been a significant growth in generation of electronic waste (e-waste) as well. To introduce new tech, there is a constant disposal of obsolete tech. The global electronic waste (e-waste) scenario has reached alarming proportions, posing severe risks to both health and the environment. The world generated 62 billion Kgs of E-waste in 2022, an average of 7.8 kg per capita compared to 53.6 billion Kgs in 2019, average 7.3 kg per capita. This amounts to an average increase of 2.8 billion Kg every year, which would mean the world will generate about 84.4 billion Kg of e-waste by 2030. And only 22.3 per cent (13.8 billion

kg) of the e-waste generated in 2022 was documented as properly collected and recycled (Forti et al., 2020; United Nations, 2020, 2024). Despite growing awareness and initiatives to improve e-waste management, such as extended producer responsibility (EPR) policies and international agreements like the Basel Convention, substantial gaps remain in implementation and enforcement, particularly in low- and middle-income countries (Baldé et al., 2022).

2.2 E-waste scenario in India

India's electronic waste (e-waste) scenario has become increasingly critical, India is not only among the top 5 generators of E waste in the world but also among the top 5 importers of e-waste from the world. In 2023, India produced approximately 3.5 million metric tonnes (Mt) of e-waste, a significant increase from the 2.0 Mt generated in 2014 (Central Pollution Control Board, 2023). By 2030, it is estimated that India's e-waste generation could exceed 5.5 Mt, highlighting the urgent need for effective waste management solutions (Parajuly et al., 2019).

2.3 in Chandigarh

Consumers also have the option of returning their e-waste to the EEE producers under the EPR policy scheme, as mandated in the EWM Rules 2022

2.4 In Udaipur

2.4.1 PCB has developed Plastic Credit App, team will take the equipment from home and then dispose it off, Second initiative for a clean city, deposit e-waste like old laptops, mobiles, fridges and coolers, money will be given as per the weight

2.4.2 News, City Reporter | Udaipur :

To save the environment, after first collecting plastic bottles from homes, offices and institutions, Pollution Control Board (PCB) has started a campaign for proper disposal of electronic waste (e-waste). Under this, the team will collect e-waste like old fridge cooler, mixer laptop, TV-computer from your house. The price for these items will be paid per kilogram or per piece. A receipt will also be given. This garbage will be collected and sent to the authorized recycler for disposal. For this, you can place a request on the mobile app PlasticCredit of the Regional Pollution Control Board. On this app, the general public, Hotel, hospital and industry operators can register for free. Initially the name of this application was Plasticlean which has been changed to PlasticCredit. Actually the state government is running a campaign for proper disposal of e-waste in the state. Under this, e-waste collection campaign will be run in Udaipur from 5 to 7 July 2025. To make it successful and create awareness among people, Udaipur PCB has started it 20 days ago. Apart from the mobile app, the team is also collecting e-waste by setting up camps in hotels and apartments. On Friday, the trial started from RSG Apartment located at Pratapnagar-Balicha bypass. Camps will be set up at other places in the coming days.

2.4.3 More than 50 devices are included in the list, which will weigh those who are heavy :

Under the scheme, the payment rate for each item has been fixed across the state. Computer will be paid Rs 350 per piece, laptop Rs 500, notepad Rs 500, mobile phone Rs 100 to Rs 500. While the rate for TV is Rs 30 per kg and fridge is Rs 40 per kg. More than 50 items are included in the list. If the condition of any equipment is very bad then its price can change.

On World Environment Day, PCB launched PlasticCredit mobile application to make the city plastic free. Along with this, machines were started in the city at Mumbaiya Bazaar of Fatehsagar, outside Sahelion ki Bari Gate, Doodhtalai, Sukhadia Circle Chowpatty, Sajjanganh Ticket Counter. Under this, common people are collecting plastic bottles coming out of their homes, offices or institutions. So far, about 2500 to 3000 bottles have been collected. Participants will be given free health checkup, cloth bags, terracotta bottles etc. as gifts.

III. EPR POLICY INSTRUMENTS ON WASTE -A REVIEW

In recent years, the management of e-waste, defined as electrical and electronic devices that have reached their final time span , has garnered significant attention due to the rapid proliferation of electronic devices and the subsequent environmental and health challenges resulting from improper disposal.

Policy 2021 EPR success dependent on market expansion, economies of scale, reduction in uncertainty .

Policy 2022 Investigation of EPR schemes in India Suggestion of modified EPR model for e-waste India

Policy 2023 Absence of informal sector in Indian e-waste legislation Collaboration of formal and informal sector required

3.1. How can you help In Udaipur ?

Give or donate to an authorized institution/agency.

Return to an authorized store under a buy-bank or exchange program.

Get a fair price by disposing of e-waste through authorized recyclers.

3.2 Exchange your old appliances and electronics in the e-waste collection drive .

Notes:

1. The rate provided is the starting price on per pound or per kilogram basis.
2. If the material is of better quality, then appropriate and higher price will be paid for it.
3. For material on kilogram basis, the weight will be measured on the weighing scale at the collection facility or collection vehicle.
4. The rate of the goods/material is for the entire item(s) and if any item/material is found missing, then the rate will be fixed on the basis of the physically available product. The rate will be determined after the recyclers inspect the material.

3.3 Extended Producer Responsibility Framework in India

3.3.1 Registration. - (1) The entities shall register on the portal in any of the following category, namely: -

- (a) manufacturer;
- (b) producer;
- (c) refurbisher; or
- (d) recycler.

3.3.2 Responsibilities of the manufacturer. – All manufacturer shall have to, -

- (1) register on the portal;
- (2) collect e-waste generated during the manufacture of any electrical and electronic equipment and ensure its recycling or disposal;
- (3) file annual and quarterly returns in the laid down form on the portal on or before end of the month succeeding the quarter or year, as the case may be, to which the return relates.

India adopted EPR framework to regulate e-waste in its E-waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 2011, which became effective in May 2012. The 2011 Rules use mandatory take-back as the policy instrument within the EPR approach. The Indian Ministry of Environment and Forests (MoEF) has amended the 2011 Rules; the new Rules have become effective in October 2016. Among other important changes, the amended Rules set collection targets for the producers and require them to set up a deposit-refund system. In this context, this paper reviews the theoretical research on policy instruments available for EPR and empirical research on the experience of EPR policy instruments in other countries to draw implications for EPR policy design and implementation in India.

EPR is defined as ‘a policy principle in which the upstream actors must be made responsible for the waste generated even in the downstream activities with a focus on the take back, recycle and disposal of the product’ (Lindhqvist, 2000). Compared to the PPP where the producers were only responsible for the waste generated in the production process, under the EPR, producers are responsible for waste generated by a product throughout its lifecycle.

3.3.3 Responsibilities of State Government or Union territories. –

- (1) The Department of Industry in the State and Union territory or any other government agency authorised in this regard by the State Government or the Union territory, as the case may be, shall ensure earmarking or allocation of industrial space or shed for e-waste dismantling and recycling in the existing and upcoming industrial park, estate and industrial clusters.
- (2) Department of Labor in the State and Union territory or any other government agency authorised in this regard by the State Government or the Union territory, as the case may be, shall, -
 - (a) ensure recognition and registration of workers involved in dismantling and recycling;
 - (b) assist formation of groups of such workers to facilitate setting up of dismantling facilities;
 - (c) undertake industrial skill development activities for the workers involved in dismantling and recycling;
 - (d) undertake annual monitoring and to ensure safety and health of workers involved in dismantling and recycling.

3.4 **Procedure for storage of e-waste.** - Every manufacturer, producer, refurbisher and recycler may store the e-waste for a period not exceeding one hundred and eighty days and shall maintain a record of sale, transfer and storage of e-wastes and make these records available for inspection and the storage of the e-waste shall be done as per the applicable rules or guidelines for the time being in force

3.5 **Modalities of the extended producer responsibility Regime.** – (1) All producers shall fulfil their extended producer responsibility obligation as per Schedule-III and Schedule-IV, in doing so they may also take help of third party organisations such as producer responsibility organisations, collection centres, dealers etc

3.6 Extended producer responsibility Certificate Generation. –

3.6.1 Recycling. – (i) The Central Pollution Control Board shall generate extended producer responsibility certificate through the portal in favour of a registered recycler in the format laid down by it in this regard.

(ii) (a) The quantity eligible for generation of extended producer responsibility certificate shall be calculated by the following formula namely:

$$*QEPR = Q_p \times C_f$$

**the QEPR is the quantity eligible for generation of the certificate, Q_p is the quantity of the end product and C_f is the conversion factor (quantity of inputs required for production of one unit of output)*

(iii) The validity of the extended producer responsibility certificate shall be two years from the end of the financial year in which it was generated and the expired certificate automatically extinguished after the period unless extinguished earlier as per the provisions of these rules.

(iv) Each extended producer responsibility certificate shall have a unique number containing year of generation, code of end product, recycler code and a unique code and the extended producer responsibility certificates shall be in the denominations of 100, 200, 500 and 1000 kg or such other denominations as may be laid down by the Central Pollution Control Board with the approval of the Steering Committee.

3.6.2 Refurbishing. – (i) The e-waste shall also be allowed for refurbishing and refurbisher shall have to get registered on the portal and based on the data provided, refurbishing certificate shall be generated in favour of a registered refurbisher in the format laid down by it in this regard.

(ii) On production of the refurbishing certificates purchased from the registered refurbishers, the extended producer responsibility of the producers shall be deferred by the duration as laid down by the Central Pollution Control Board for the corresponding quantity of e-waste and shall be added to the extended producer responsibility of the producer upon expiry of the extended life of the refurbished product. (iii) To incentivise refurbishing, only 75 per cent of the deferred quantity shall be added to the extended producer responsibility of the producer for recycling upon expiry of the extended life of the refurbished product.

3.7 Literature gaps

The enforcement of Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is another area with notable research gaps. While EPR is a cornerstone of India's e-waste policy, its implementation has been inconsistent, with many producers failing to meet their collection and recycling targets (Faibil et al., 2023). Studies need to explore the barriers to effective EPR implementation and develop strategies to enhance compliance and accountability among producers.

IV. RESULT OF UDAIPUR'S EPR POLICY ON E-WASTE REGULATIONS

The theoretical exploration of the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) policy in the context of e-waste management in Udaipur reveals that while the policy framework exists at the national level under the E-Waste (Management) Rules, 2016 (amended in 2022), its practical implementation at the city level remains limited. Udaipur, being a rapidly growing smart city, generates a significant volume of electronic waste due to increased digitalization, rising urbanization, and growing consumer electronics usage.

V. CONCLUSIONS AND IMPLICATIONS FOR UDAIPUR'S EPR POLICY ON E-WASTE REGULATIONS

The implementation of the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) policy in Udaipur, a developing smart city, theoretically provides a sustainable framework for managing electronic waste. By mandating producers to take responsibility for the end-of-life management of electronic products, EPR encourages environmentally sound recycling and disposal practices. However, in Udaipur, the policy's effectiveness is limited by poor enforcement, lack of public awareness, and insufficient infrastructure. Strengthening institutional frameworks, enhancing stakeholder participation, and promoting formal recycling channels are essential to realize the full potential of EPR in achieving sustainable e-waste management in the city.

Analysis indicates that effective EPR implementation in Udaipur has the potential to:

1. Strengthen accountability among producers and importers by mandating proper collection, recycling, and disposal mechanisms.
 2. Promote formalization of the informal e-waste sector, which currently handles a major portion of waste through unscientific and hazardous practices.
 3. Encourage local infrastructure development for authorized e-waste collection centers and recycling units.
 4. Support environmental sustainability by reducing illegal dumping and unsafe recycling methods.
 5. Improve consumer awareness and participation through take-back schemes and deposit-refund incentives.
- results also highlight several challenges:

- Limited awareness among producers and consumers about their responsibilities under EPR.
- Inadequate coordination between municipal bodies, producers, and recyclers.
- Insufficient monitoring and enforcement mechanisms at the local level.
- Lack of digital tracking and data transparency on e-waste generation, collection, and recycling.

These findings emphasize the need for stronger city-level governance, better infrastructure, public-private partnerships, and continuous stakeholder engagement to ensure the success of EPR policy in managing e-waste in Udaipur effectively.

REFERENCES

Websites

- [1]. <https://www.nswai.org/docs/Study%20Paper%20On%20e-waste%20management.pdf>
- [2]. https://www.worldwidejournals.com/global-journal-for-research-analysis-GJRA/recent_issues_pdf/2015/December/December_2015_1449929378__56.pdf
- [3]. https://www.researchgate.net/publication/303505984_Scenario_of_future_e-waste_generation_and_recycle-reuse-landfill-based_disposal_pattern_in_India_a_system_dynamics_approach/link/5c542d0e458515a4c74f15b7/download
- [4]. <https://greene.gov.in/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/turaga-and-Bhaskar2017.pdf>
- [5]. <https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2226585621000741>
- [6]. <https://sanshodhancpb.co.in/index.php/Sanshodhan/article/download/169814/115909/411012>
- [7]. https://psa.gov.in/CMS/web/sites/default/files/publication/annexure1_advisoryonewastemanagementinsmartcities%20%281%29.pdf
- [8]. <https://www.scribd.com/document/690326044/DEP-Udaipur>
- [9]. https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Harsha-Kumawat/publication/380405178_Strategies_for_Managing_Electronic_Waste_A_Systematic_Review_of_Literature/links/663b7faa06ea3d0b7441dca1/Strategies-for-Managing-Electronic-Waste-A-Systematic-Review-of-Literature.pdf?origin=publication_detail&_tp=eyJjb250ZXh0Ijp7ImZpcnN0UGFnZSI6InB1YmxpY2F0aW9uIiwicGFnZSI6InB1YmxpY2F0aW9uRG93bmxvYWQiLCJwcmV2aW91c1BhZ2UiOiJwdWJsaWNhdGlvbiJ9fQ&__cf_chl_tk=hVEVNZqP4A9iulM9CBWUwzDmJ1WCG4PaWZb1XVD8yk-1750676295-1.0.1.1-w1xZU.gVLojrQ.U.BF85EB0dcdWUdQU_upTO78LvTGE
- [10]. <https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2772416624000743>
- [11]. https://www.researchgate.net/publication/389263080_India's_E-Waste_Management_Analysis_and_Opportunities_for_a_Sustainable_Future
- [12]. <https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s10163-025-02194-8>
- [13]. Further References:
- [14]. <https://cpcb.nic.in/>
- [15]. <https://moef.gov.in/>
- [16]. <https://desagri.gov.in/>
- [17]. <https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/>
- [18]. <http://www.sdgindia2030.mospi.gov.in/>
- [19]. <https://www.data.gov.in/>
- [20]. <http://egazette.nic.in/>
- [21]. <https://greentribunal.gov.in/>
- [22]. <https://greene.gov.in/>
- [23]. <https://www.assochem.org/>
- [24]. <https://greenpeace.org/>
- [25]. <https://theroundup.org/>

- [26]. <https://reecollabb.com/>
- [27]. <https://www.business-standard.com/>
- [28]. <https://www.astuteanalytica.com/>
- [29]. <https://www.ecsenvironment.com/>
- [30]. Rajasthan - <https://environment.rajasthan.gov.in/>

Central Pollution Control Board (CPCB)	https://cpcb.nic.in/
Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change (MoEFCC)	https://moef.gov.in/
Directorate of Economics and Statistics	https://desagri.gov.in/
National Center of Biotechnology Information	https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/
Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation	http://www.sdgindia2030.mospi.gov.in/
Open Government Data Platform of India	https://www.data.gov.in/
Official Gazette of India	http://egazette.nic.in/
National Green Tribunal	https://greentribunal.gov.in/
Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology (MeitY)	https://greene.gov.in/
ASSOCHAM	https://www.assochem.org/

1. Central Pollution Control Board- Implementation of e waste rules 2011.
2. Concept Document- Strategies for improving the sustainability of e waste management systems, University of Illinois
3. Effective electronic waste management and recycling process involving formal and non-formal sectors by S. Chatterjee and Krishna Kumar, Department of IT, CGO Complex, New Delhi
4. en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Electronic_waste
5. E-waste assessment in Kolkata Metropolitan Area-AReport by IMRB International April 2010 to West Bengal Pollution Control Board, GTZ and ICC Kolkata
6. E-waste in India, Research Unit, RajyaSabhaSecretariat, June, 2011
7. E-waste : A hidden threat to Global environment and Health, Deepti Mittal
8. ITC, www.itcportal.com
9. Letter on Lenovo's progress of ROHS dated 2.9.2014 by Robert J. Taylor Director of Environmental Affairs, Corporate Quality programs, Safety and Standards, 1009 Think Place, Morrisville, NC 27560.
10. International Telecommunication Union, <http://www.itu.int>
11. Mainstreaming the Informal Sector in E-Waste Management – GTZ Advisory Services
12. Managing e-waste in India – A review, Gulsan Sirkek, Gaurav Gupta
13. Ministry of Environment and Forests- notification dated 12th May,2011,<http://moef.nic.in>
14. Telecom Regulatory Authority of India- Recommendations on approach towards Green Telecommunications'
15. Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment, The EU and India: sharing best practices, Toxics Link
16. [nokia-about/en -in/com.nokia.www](http://nokia-about/en-in/com.nokia.www)

- [1]. Abalansa, S., El Mahrad, B., Icely, J., & Newton, A. (2021). Electronic waste, an environmental problem exported to developing countries: The good, the bad and the ugly. Sustainability (Switzerland), 13(9). <https://doi.org/10.3390/su13095302>
- [2]. Adhana, D. (2024). E-Waste Generation, Management and Impacts: A Review in Present Indian Scenario. SSRN Electronic Journal. <https://doi.org/10.2139/ssrn.4786939>
- [3]. Andeobu, L., Wibowo, S., & Grandhi, S. (2021). A systematic review of E-waste generation and environmental management of Asia Pacific countries. In International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health (Vol. 18, Issue 17). MDPI. <https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph18179051>
- [4]. Arya, S., & Kumar, S. (2020). E-waste in India at a glance: Current trends, regulations, challenges and management strategies. In Journal of Cleaner Production (Vol. 271). Elsevier Ltd. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2020.122707>
- [5]. Adesiyun, I. A., & Olubambi, P. A. (2023). The Environmental Fate of E-waste. In Electronic Waste Management (pp. 90–103). Wiley. <https://doi.org/10.1002/9781119891543.ch8>
- [6]. Bagwan, W. A. (2024). Electronic waste (E-waste) generation and management scenario of India, and ARIMA forecasting of E-waste processing capacity of Maharashtra state till 2030. Waste Management Bulletin, 1(4), 41–51. <https://doi.org/10.1016/J.WMB.2023.08.002>
- [7]. Borthakur, A., & Govind, M. (2017). How well are we managing E-waste in India: evidences from the city of Bangalore. Energy, Ecology and Environment, 2(4), 225–235. <https://doi.org/10.1007/s40974-017-0060-0>

- [8]. Brewer, A., Dror, I., & Berkowitz, B. (2022). Electronic waste as a source of rare earth element pollution: Leaching, transport in porous media, and the effects of nanoparticles. *Chemosphere*, 287, 132217. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chemosphere.2021.132217>
- [9]. Das, J., & Ghosh, A. (2023). Recycling Practices of E-Waste and Associated Challenges: A Research Trends Analysis. *Nature Environment and Pollution Technology*, 22(3), 1169–1182. <https://doi.org/10.46488/NEPT.2023.v22i03.007>
- [10]. Dawson, K. E. (2016). The Ethical Issues of Dumping Electronic Waste in India. In *Ethics Essay Contest*. <http://digitalcommons.augustana.edu/ethicscontest/7>
- [11]. Dutta, D., & Goel, S. (2021). Understanding the gap between formal and informal e-waste recycling facilities in India. *Waste Management*, 125, 163–171. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.wasman.2021.02.045>
- [12]. European Commission, 2023. Waste Electrical & Electronic Equipment (WEEE). [online] Available at: https://environment.ec.europa.eu/topics/waste-and-recycling/waste-electrical-and-electronic-equipment-weee_en [Accessed 3 August 2024].
- [13]. Ibrahim Mohammed, S. (2023). E-Waste Management in Different Countries: Strategies, Impacts, and Determinants. In *Advances in Green Electronics Technologies in 2023*. IntechOpen. <https://doi.org/10.5772/intechopen.106644>
- [14]. Kaushik, P. R., & Herat, S. (2020). Current state of e-waste management in India. *International Journal of Environment and Waste Management*, 25(3), 322. <https://doi.org/10.1504/IJEW.2020.106293>
- [15]. Kumar, R., Saxena, A., Chawla, J., & Kumar, V. (2024). Environmental Impacts of E-Waste: Pollution and Resource Depletion (pp. 12–32). <https://doi.org/10.4018/979-8-3693-1018-2.ch002>
- [16]. Kumar, S., Agarwal, N., Anand, S. K., & Rajak, B. K. (2022). E-waste management in India: A strategy for the attainment of SDGs 2030. *Materials Today: Proceedings*, 60, 811–814. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.matpr.2021.09.296>
- [17]. Khan, S. A. (2016). E-products, E-waste and the Basel Convention: Regulatory Challenges and Impossibilities of International Environmental Law. *Review of European, Comparative & International Environmental Law*, 25(2), 248–260. <https://doi.org/10.1111/reel.12163>
- [18]. Lingareddy, D., Isanaka, T., Dinesh, C., & Rajesh Kumar, K. V. (2024). E-Waste Reduction Methods in Sustainable Ways (pp. 122–135). <https://doi.org/10.4018/979-8-3693-1018-2.ch009>
- [19]. López, M., Reche, C., Pérez-Albaladejo, E., Porte, C., Balasch, A., Monfort, E., Eljarrat, E., & Viana, M. (2022). E-waste dismantling as a source of personal exposure and environmental release of fine and ultrafine particles. *Science of The Total Environment*, 833, 154871. <https://doi.org/10.1016/J.SCITOTENV.2022.154871>
- [20]. Mccann, D., Help, W., Wittmann, A., & Europe, E. (2015). E-waste Prevention, Take-back System Design and Policy Approaches.
- [21]. Mohammed, S., & Kaida, N. (2024). Opportunities and challenges for circular economy in the Maldives: A stakeholder analysis of informal E-waste management in the Greater Malé Region. *Journal of Environmental Management*, 358, 120944. <https://doi.org/10.1016/J.JENVMAN.2024.120944>
- [22]. Needhidasan, S., Samuel, M., & Chidambaram, R. (2014). Electronic waste – an emerging threat to the environment of urban India. *Journal of Environmental Health Science and Engineering*, 12(1), 36. <https://doi.org/10.1186/2052-336X-12-36>
- [23]. Nnorom, I. C., & Osibanjo, O. (2008). Overview of electronic waste (e-waste) management practices and legislations, and their poor applications in the developing countries. 64
- [24]. Resources, Conservation and Recycling, 52(6), 843–858. <https://doi.org/10.1016/J.RESCONREC.2008.01.004>
- [25]. Parajuly, K.; Kuehr, R.; Awasthi, A. K.; Fitzpatrick, C.; Lepawsky, J.; Smith E.; Widmer, R.; Zeng, X. (2019). Future E-waste Scenarios; StEP (Bonn), UNU ViE-SCYCLE (Bonn) & UNEP IETC (Osaka). https://collections.unu.edu/eserv/UNU:7440/FUTURE_E-WASTE_SCENARIOS_UNU_190829_low_screen.pdf
- [26]. Priyashantha, A. K. H., Pratheesh, N., & Pretheeba, P. (2022). E-waste scenario in South-Asia: an emerging risk to environment and public health. In *Environmental Analysis Health and Toxicology* (Vol. 37, Issue 3). <https://doi.org/10.5620/eaht.2022022>
- [27]. Pruess, J. T. (2023). Unraveling the complexity of extended producer responsibility policy mix design, implementation, and transfer dynamics in the European Union. *Journal of Industrial Ecology*, 27(6), 1500–1520. <https://doi.org/10.1111/jiec.13429>
- [28]. Purushothaman, M., Gousuddin Inamdar, M., & Muthunayanan, V. (2020). Socio-economic impact of the e-waste pollution in India. *Materials Today: Proceedings*, 37(Part 2), 280–283. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.matpr.2020.05.242>
- [29]. Sajid, M., Zakkariya K. A., ., & Joy, H. (2022). Determinants of E-waste Recycling Intention in India: The Influence of Environmental Concern, Attitude and Economic Incentives. *Colombo Business Journal*, 13(1), 119–140. <https://doi.org/10.4038/cbj.v13i1.91>
- [30]. Seif, R., Salem, F. Z., & Allam, N. K. (2024). E-waste recycled materials as efficient catalysts for renewable energy technologies and better environmental sustainability. In *Environment, Development and Sustainability* (Vol.

- 26, Issue 3, pp. 5473–5508). Springer Science and Business Media B.V. <https://doi.org/10.1007/s10668-023-02925-7>
- [31]. Sengupta, D., Ilankoon, I. M. S. K., Dean Kang, K., & Nan Chong, M. (2022). Circular economy and household e-waste management in India: Integration of formal and informal sectors. In *Minerals Engineering* (Vol. 184). Elsevier Ltd. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.mineng.2022.107661>
- [32]. Sharma, A., Sharma, D., Arora, D., & Grewal, A. S. (2024). Current Trends in E-Waste Management. In *Sustainable Management of Electronic Waste* (pp. 167–186). Wiley. <https://doi.org/10.1002/9781394166923.ch8>
- [33]. Singh, Dr. G., & Bhadauria, J. S. (2023). Statistical modeling of electronic waste (e-waste) generated in India. *International Journal of Statistics and Applied Mathematics*, 8(6S), 116–122. <https://doi.org/10.22271/math.2023.v8.i6Sb.1368>
- [34]. Singh, S., Sankar Dasgupta, M., & Routroy, S. (2023). Analysis of Critical Success Factors to Design E-waste Collection Policy in India: A Fuzzy DEMATEL Approach. <https://doi.org/10.1007/s11356-021-16129-x/Published>
- [35]. Srivastava, Sparsh & Gautam, Anupam. (2022). STUDY OF SUSTAINABLE ELECTRONIC WASTE MANAGEMENT AND RECYCLING PROCESS: A REVIEW. https://www.researchgate.net/publication/362790443_STUDY_OF_SUSTAINABLE_ELECTRONIC_WASTE_MANAGEMENT_AND_RECYCLING_PROCESS_A_REVIEW
- [36]. Surekha, A., & Suguna, A. (2022). E-waste management practices and perception about its health hazards. *International Journal of Preventive Medicine*, 13(1), 123. https://doi.org/10.4103/ijpvm.IJPVM_547_20
- [37]. Syed Saif Ali. (2022). E-waste: A new challenge for waste management in India. *International Journal of Engineering Technology and Management Sciences*, 6(6), 131–136. <https://doi.org/10.46647/ijetms.2022.v06i06.021>
- [38]. United Nations, 2023. Global E-waste Surges 21% in Five Years. [online] <https://unu.edu/press-release/global-e-waste-surging-21-5-years> [Accessed 20 July 2024].
- [39]. Baldé, C.P., Kuehr, R., Yamamoto, T., McDonald, R., D'Angelo, E., Althaf, S., Bel, G., Deubzer, O., Fernandez-Cubillo, E., Forti, V., Gray, V., Herat, S., Honda, S., Iattoni, G., Khatriwal, D.S., Luda di Cortemiglia, V., Lobuntsova, Y., Nnorom, I., Pralat, N., & Wagner, M. (2024) *Global E-waste Monitor 2024*. Geneva/Bonn: International Telecommunication Union (ITU) and United Nations Institute for Training and Research (UNITAR).
- [40]. Verma, S., & Tiwari, S. (2023). E-Waste Management: A New Dimension for Waste Management in India. In *Social Development and Governance Innovations in Education, Technology and Management* (pp. 184–192). QTanalytics India. https://doi.org/10.48001/978-81-966500-9-4_15
- [41]. Dr Mukesh Shrimali , Priyanka Ameta, Dr. Dushmanta Barman